
Town of Discovery Bay  
Standing Communications Committee Meeting 

 Agenda for March 3, 2021 - Pg.1 

 
 

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE STANDING COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday, March 3, 2021 
3:30 P.M. - 4:30 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, and for the period in which the Order remains 
in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Committee Chambers will be closed to 
the public.  

To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Committee’s Chambers are closed to the 
public, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Committee Members have arranged for 
members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically.  

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE: 
Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (866) 848-2216 
CONFERENCE ID 5193676302# 

Download Agenda Packet and Materials at www.todb.ca.gov/ 

Communications Committee Members 
Michael Callahan 
Carolyn Graham 

A. ROLL CALL
1. Call business meeting to order 3:30 p.m.
2. Roll Call.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)
During Public Comments, the public may address the Committee on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is before 
the Committee for consideration. Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment. 
There will be no dialog between the Committee and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of 
Committee members to discuss matters not on the agenda.  We ask that you refrain from personal attacks 
during comment, and that you address all comments to the Committee only.  Any clarifying questions from the 
Committee must go through the Chair.  Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of 
the Committee members.

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED
1. Approve February 17, 2021 Special Communications Committee Meeting DRAFT minutes.

D. PRESENTATIONS
1. Communications Update.

E. DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. Discussion Regarding Chair and Vice-Chair.
2. Discussion Regarding the Message Board Policy.
3. Discussion Regarding Eye on Water Campaign.

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Bryon Gutow • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

Town of Discovery Bay  
Standing Communications Committee Meeting 

 Agenda for March 3, 2021 - Pg.2 

 

 4. Discussion Regarding Like Us on FB Campaign 
 

F. FUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS 
 
G.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next Standing Communications Committee meeting at the Community Center located at 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code § 54954.2). Persons 
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the Town of 
Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda packet are 
available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal business hours." 



 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay  

Special Communications Committee Meeting  
Minutes for February 17, 2021 - Pg.1 

 

          
 
 
 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday, February 17, 2021 
6:00 P.M. – 7:00 P.M. 

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19  

 
In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-33-20, and for the period in which the Order remains 
in effect, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Committee Chambers will be closed to 
the public.  

 
To accommodate the public during this period of time that the Committee’s Chambers are closed to the 
public, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Committee Members have arranged for 
members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically.  
 

TO ATTEND BY TELECONFERENCE: 
Toll-Free Dial-In Number: (866) 848-2216  
CONFERENCE ID 5193676302# 
 
Download Agenda Packet and Materials at www.todb.ca.gov 
 

Communications Committee Board Members 
 Carolyn Graham 
 Michael Callahan 

 
A. ROLL CALL 

1. Call business meeting to order 6:00 p.m. – By Board Member Carolyn Graham 
2. Roll Call – All Present. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
None. 
 

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED 
1. November 4, 2020 Communications Committee DRAFT meeting minutes. 
Motion made by Committee Member Callahan to approve items on the Consent Calendar as presented. 
Second by Committee Member Graham. 

 
D. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Discuss Hosting an Open House/Town Hall and Recommend a Date and Time. 
General Manager Mike Davies discussed the idea of hosting an Open House/ Town Hall for the community. 
Recommendation from staff included the possibility of setting up stations for Town contractors where the 
public will be able to speak to someone from that department and become familiar with what they do and 
how they fit into the Town of Discovery Bay community. This Open House/ Town Hall will be a way to invite 
the public to enjoy the amenities the Town has to offer at the Community Center grounds and ask questions 
about Town projects.  
Committee Member Graham recommended inviting Save the Delta, Department of Boating and Waterways 
and Reclamation 800 to participate with a station.  
Committee members discussed a date for this project and agreed upon June 26, 2021. 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

President – Bryon Gutow • Director – Kevin Graves • Director – Ashley Porter • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 
 

 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay  

Special Communications Committee Meeting  
Minutes for February 17, 2021 - Pg.2 

 

General Manager Mike Davies advised of Health Department restrictions for social gatherings and that they 
might pose an issue in the planning of this event.  
Committee Members agreed to bring this item to the Board for discussion. 
2. Discuss ways of Better Communicating with all Areas of the Town. 
Conversations among Committee Members and General Manager Mike Davies included topics such as 
reaching out to the Lakeshore area to encourage participation in Town meetings. Committee Member Graham 
suggested possibly setting out a digital board to remind Lakeshore area of meeting dates and times. 
Committee Member Callahan suggested communicating with the press any important items which the public 
might have large interest in. Talk also included update regarding the current part time position in the Parks 
and Recreation Department. This position will be posted as a full time position in the Summer. 
3. Activity Guide Advertising 
Recreation Program Supervisor Monica Gallo discussed the Seasonal Activity Guide that is sent out by mail 
to each Town of Discovery Bay home. She suggested making only a digital copy of this guide, saving the Town 
$5,500 each time the guide is up for printing. Currently, there are 6,600 paper copies being ordered and mailed 
out with paid postage three times a year. The guides are mailed out for the Winter/Spring, Summer and 
Fall/Winter bringing the total yearly expense to approximately $16,500. Making only digital copies will save the 
Town $13,500 of the cost. 
Committee Member Graham stated that some in the community look forward to receiving the Activity Guide in 
the mail and not everyone has access to a computer.  
Committee Member Callahan recommended having the public to ask for a paper copy if they preferred it to a 
digital copy. 
Discussion was held among Committee Members and staff regarding different ways to make the guide 
available to the public. Also discussed was guide content. 
Committee Members recommended printing 500 paper copies of the Activity Guide to make them available 
upon request, as well as making digital guides available to all of Town of Discovery Bay. 
Committee Member Graham recommended inviting more traffic to the Town’s Facebook page. 
Committee Member Callahan suggested an update to the hold music the public hears when calling Town of 
Discovery Bay. 

 
E. FUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS 
 
F.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next Standing Communications Committee meeting at the Community Center located at 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
 

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code § 54954.2). Persons 
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the Town of 
Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda packet are 
available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal business hours." 
 
 
//ym//021921 



  
1119076-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Sign Board Policy 
Established March 6, 2019 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

NAME 
 

This Policy shall be known as the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (“District”) 
Message Board Policy. 

 
 ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Policy on use of the Discovery Bay Stationary Message Board (“Message Board”) 
is to create a non-public forum to communicate District-related emergency and/or safety 
information to residents and visitors, and to promote community events. The Message Board serves 
to notify citizens and visitors of upcoming events that are (i) District-sponsored, (ii) District co-
sponsored, or (iii) sponsored by a local non-profit (collectively and individually “District 
Programming”).   Emergency and/or safety messages will typically include information on hazardous 
conditions, the need for extra caution, traffic detours, and/or emergency instructions.   Community 
event  information on the Message Board may display multiple events at any one time and will 
typically consist of event dates, names, and details.  
 

ARTICLE III 
 
GENERAL GUIDELINES 
 
The Stationary Message Board shall be administered at the District’s discretion and is restricted to 
use by the District for District messaging, District-sponsored events, District co-sponsored events, 
and  events by a local non-profit, provided that the message benefits Discovery Bay or its residents 
and meets the requirements of this Policy.  
 
The Message Board may be used to promote events that are: 
 1. of broad benefit to the Discovery Bay community; 
 2. not of a political or partisan, private party, commercial, obscene, or religious (non-secular) 

nature; and 
 3. taking place within the limits of Discovery Bay. 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
 

  

Program Area: 
Board 

  
Date Established: 

March 6, 2019 
  

Policy Name: 
Message Board Policy 

  
  
Date Amended: 
  

Policy Number: 
028 

  
Resolution: 

2019-01 
  



  
1119076-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Sign Board Policy 
Established March 6, 2019 

 

ARTICLE IV 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
 4.1 Applicant: An individual or a Representative or agent of a Discovery Bay local non-profit 
seeking to publicize an event on the Message Board. 
 
 4.2 District Co-sponsored: An event coordinated and conducted through a partnership  
between the District and another organization. 
 
 4.3 District Sponsored: An event coordinated and conducted entirely by the District. 
 
 4.4  Event: An organized function, open to the public, located within Discovery Bay and 
benefitting the District residents. To be eligible, the event must occur within six months of the first 
day the applicant seeks to post about the event on the Message Board. 
 
 4.5 Local Non-profit Organization: Organizations located in Discovery Bay or that primarily 
serve Discovery Bay residents that are registered with the State of California as a “non-profit” 
community organization or that are exempt under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 

ARTICLE V 
 
POLICY 
 
 5.1 District messaging shall take priority and shall supersede all other messaging.  
Messaging for District business and District sponsored and co-sponsored events shall be by approval 
and discretion of the General Manager. 
 
 5.2 The District may, for the benefit of the community at large, allow for temporary display 
of event information on the Message Board to promote events. The display of information on the 
Message Board is limited to District Programming, functionality and availability 
 
 5.3 Any local non-profit organization that wishes to display or advertise an event that is not 
sponsored or co-sponsored by the District must submit a complete application form and pay a non-
refundable fifty dollars ($50.00) application fee. The form and fee must be submitted to the District 
General Manager for consideration of approval.   
 
 5.4 The General Manager or his/her designee shall consider requests and applications to 
display information on the Message Board in the following priority: 
 

1. District sponsored events. 
2. District co-sponsored events. 
3. Local “non-profit” organization events that benefit the Discovery Bay community or 

District. 

 5.5 If approved by the General Manager, event information shall typically be displayed for 
a period not to exceed seven days. The maximum allowable period of display on the Message Board 
is: 
 



  
1119076-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Sign Board Policy 
Established March 6, 2019 

 

1. Unlimited for District sponsored events. 
2. Unlimited for District co-sponsored events. 
3. Seven days prior to the event for local “non-profit” organizations. Additional time may be 

approved on a case-by-case basis. 

ARTICLE VI 
PROCEDURES 
 
 6.1 Event information to be considered for display on the Message Board must be 
submitted to the General Manager, not less than a minimum of four weeks prior to the event, but 
no more than 6 months prior to the event. The General Manager, or her/his designee, may allow a 
shorter time period. 
  
 6.2 Event name, date, location of the event, phone number for more information, and 
contact person must be included with the request on the application form. Requests will not be 
taken over the phone. Additional information such as event details, website, email address, and 
organization information is encouraged and may be required for a better understanding of the event 
and organization. 
 
 6.3 The length of messages is limited due to the size of the sign. The number of messages 
which appears at any given time period is also limited to six (6) individual messages at any one time. 
 
 6.4 “Non-profit” organizations shall submit proof of their non-profit status concurrently 
with their application to post on the Message Board. 
 
 6.5 The General Manager, or her/his designee, shall review all information submitted and 
shall make a final determination as to whether the application for use of the Message Board is 
approved based on this policy, including rejection of application(s). The General Manager’s decision 
may be appealed to District Board of Directors upon payment of a fee of fifty dollars ($50.00). A 
person desiring to appeal a decision shall file notice of appeal in writing with the General Manager 
within ten (10) days after the date of the decision being appealed. The notice shall briefly state the 
facts and the grounds of appeal. 
 
 6.6 The Message Board hours of illuminated operation will generally be from 6:30 a.m. to 
11:30 p.m., Sunday through Saturday.   The General Manager has the discretion to extend or reduce 
the hours of operation based on the nature and importance of the message or upon other 
circumstances existing at the time.   
 
 6.6 The District offers no guarantee with respect to posting of messages on the Message 
Board or the number of seconds during which the message will be displayed. Prospective users are 
encouraged to use a variety of media for events and not rely solely on the Message Board. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
MOBILE ELECTRONIC SIGN BOARD 

 
 7.1 Use of the mobile electronic sign board is limited to the exclusive use of District 
Messaging, District Sponsored events and District Co-Sponsored events. 
 



  
1119076-2 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD Sign Board Policy 
Established March 6, 2019 

 

 7.2 Use and location of the mobile electronic sign board either as a stand alone or in 
addition to the Message Board shall be by approval and discretion of the General Manager.   
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 8.1 All policies and regulations are subject to change at any time, and without advance 
notice. No rights are obtained or enforceable as regards to any request or submittal and all costs 
related to a submittal shall be solely borne by the applicant. 
 
 8.2 Fees are adopted by Discovery Bay Board of Directors and are subject to yearly review. 
Adopted fees are intended to be charged on a per message and per day application. 
 
 8.3 Urgent District business, including emergency messages, as determined by the General 
Manager, or her/his designee, takes precedence over any previously scheduled requests.  If an 
applicant’s previously approved event is not posted or posted for less than 50% of the approved 
time period due to District cancellation, the applicant will receive a refund of the application fee. 
 



 

 

 
1119862-2 

1 

 
 

DISCOVERY BAY MESSAGE BOARD APPLICATION - $50.00 Fee Due 
 

Name of Requesting Person or Entity: _____________________________________________________________________ 

****If Requesting Party is claiming to be a non-profit organization, please submit proof of status. **** 

 

Requestor Primary Contact: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Primary Contact Phone: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Primary Contact Email: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Entity Website: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Description of Event: ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Event Location: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Beginning Date and Time of Event: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Ending Date and Time of Event: __________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Requested Display Date Range: __________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Requested Message Content (please limit this to 50 characters or less): 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________   ____________________________ 

Primary Contact’s Signature     Date of Submission  

*** (Must be at least 4 weeks in advance of the event date.) *** 

Note: this application will not be considered complete until all information listed above is provided and the $50.00 application 

fee is paid to the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District. 

 

 

_______________________________________   ____________________________ 

 Fee Received By       Date of Receipt 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 


	030321 Communications Committee Agenda
	OF THE STANDING COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	3:30 P.M. - 4:30 P.M.
	A. ROLL CALL
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	021721 Special Communications Committee Minutes DRAFT
	Policy 028 Sign Board Policy 022219

